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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Grice Inn in Wrightsville, Georgia, is located on the north side of Elm Street,
two blocks east of Court House Square. Although the lot rises above the street, the
site had to be dug out in order for the first floor to be at street level. This ex-
cavation was done at the corner of the lot where State Street intersects with Elm.

The inn is a two story, four over four room, rectangular plan with central hallway.

It is built of masonry and wood frame construction. The most prominent feature is the
double porch with lattice balustrade that extends around two sides of the house. Its
corner orientation is in the direction of the railroad station as opposed to downtown.
Also prominent is the roof profile. It is one of a gable resting on a hip. Two
interior chimneys extend from the apex. The windows in the house all have nine over
nine lights. Immediately behind the back porch an addition of two rooms was made

two years after the initial construction.

Across the front and on both levels, a central door is flanked on each side by
two windows. The composition of the State Street elevation is the same as the front
except that there is no door on the upper level. Paradoxically, on the side that is
seen coming from town, there are only two windows on the second level. This gives a
more stark impression of the inn than that given by the other elevations. The brick
lower level is laid in stretcher bond. Segmented arches cap each opening. It is said
that the windows on the first level had shutters at one time. Insets in the brick
flank each window into which these shutters would have fitted. The upper level is wood
frame and covered with clapboards. The porches have a shed roof supported by chamfered
wood posts. The supports on the first level rest on a low brick wall. It is interest-
ing that the posts on the upper porch are not, in every case, aligned with those of the
lower porch, . Also, there is .one less post.on the upper side porch than on the lower.
The exterior doors are panelled and glazed with carved stick flowers in the square
panels above and below .the large square glass panel. Underneath the back porch,
between the exterior wall of the house and a parallel retaining wall, is a "cellar"
where meat was stored. The two room addition on the back was so built that the back
porch became a functional dog~trot between the main house and the two rooms. The
construction is the same as that of the upper level of the main house except that the
floor is raised above the ground on brick posts. There is a central chimney in the
addition. Also on the back porch therehas been the addition of a bathroom.

On the first level inside, the floor is made of hexagonal concrete tiles that
have been used frequently as sidewalk paving. The walls are plastered. The stair
which is located at the rear of the hall is doglegged with the upper run enclosed.
The lower run appears to be altered so that an enclosed toilet could be put on the
landing. A lavatory is located next to the stairway. The room at the rear right
served as the kitchen and connects to the dining room at the front right by a small
hall. This hall also contains a side entry. Upstairs, narrow, horizontal, tongue
and groove boards are used for the walls, floors, and ceiling. There is some decay
in the floor and ceiling of the rear left room due to a leaking roof. As in the
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balustrade of the front porch, the one around the top of the stairs is also latticed.
There is a gate also at the top of the stairs. The interior doors all contain four
panels and have porcelain doorknobs. Victorian mantels with mirrors are used through-
out the house and closets flank the chimneys. The lighting consists of a single bulb
on a drop cord in each room.

Outside, a brick retaining wall parallels Elm Street extending westward from the
edge of the front porch. Dirt from the excavation for the house was probably used
for fill behind the wall to create a level area at the side of the house.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Grice Inn, built 1905, is an unusual example of vernacular architecture whose
form is unique to Middle Georgia and contains stylistic elements unprecedented in the
state. It is a landmark to the community of Wrightsville, having played a significant
role in the development of this small rural town during the period of its greatest
growth. J. R. Grice, a local farmer and carpenter, built the structure as a home for
his family and as an inn. For twenty years it served as a town social center where
students boarded, couples or senior citizens rented rooms, and townspeople took their
meals. Located near the railroad station, it was conveniently placed for hotel traffic.

Johnson County and the town of Wrightsville - founded late in the development
of this region - were relatively undistinguished except for good farm and timberland.
During the years 1870-1910, the county had its most significant growth, nearly doubling
in population every decade. The Depression, however, halted growth as it did in most
rural areas. During World War II, the county population began to decline. Wrights-
ville has managed a small growth pattern from that time until today.

It was during the height of Wrightsville's growth that J. R. Gkice bought a lot
in town from the Baptist Church. Having been a carpenter, he built the structure in
1905 and moved his family to town. Reportedly, he cut the timber for the structure ~
at his farm and let it cure for a year before beginning construction. His three sons
were all young men by this time and may have helped in the construction of the house.

Students atWarthen College, a small grade school and Junior College in Wrights-
ville, made up the bulk of the Grice Inn clientele. Because of an evident demand,
Grice added two more rooms on the back of the house three years after it was built.
The Grices operated the inn for fifteen years, retiring in 1920. It was taken over
by Mrs. Ida A. McWhorter, who ran it for amother five or six years. She and her
husband, James (Wrightsville's postmaster), attempted to buy the inn but were unable to
continue the payments. The house then reverted back to Grice. Subsequently, it was
rented out as apartments. Grice died in 1927. After division and redivision of the
estate, the eldest son, Milo, acquired the structure. It continued to be rented as
apartments for 17 years. Milo Grice sold the house in 1936 to W. L. Tompkins who
later sold it to Robert Lord in 1944. Miss Belle Lord bought the house from her
brother at that time. She lived there’ and rented rooms until recently when she sold
the house to Mr. and Mrs. E. Hodges Rowland. 'The“Johnson €burity Historical Society
acquired the site in 1977 and plans to restore it to its original condition for use
as a community center. During its seventy years of existence, the Grice Inn has
played a central role in the history of Wrightsville.
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The property is situated in the Town of Wrightsville on the southeastern corner of

a city block bounded on the north by East Court Street, on the east by State Street; on
the south by East Elm Street, and on the west by Valley Street. The southeastern portion
of this block, on which the Grice Inn is situated, is a rectangular tract of land be--
ginning at a point on State Street and running south approximately 105 feet along said
street to the intersection of East Elm Street; thence along East Elm Street approximately
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A major portion of the structure's significance is architectural. The design
stems from the French Colonial architecture found along the Mississippi River Valley,
the West Indies and Eastern Canada. Its resemblence to the House on Ellicott's
Hill, a National Historic Landmark, built in 1799, is remarkable. In the Grice
House, however, the galleries are not encompassed in the roof profile of the house
and the pitch does not change between the gabled and hipped portions of the roof.
Even though the raised cottage is indigenous to Coastal Georgia, this is, as far as
can be ascertained, the first time a form of this French Colonial style with its unique
roof profile and galleries has been used in the state. The Grice Inn is also unique
in being a raised cottage style located in the piedmont region. Nonetheless, it is
well suited for use as an inn located in a warm, humid climate. Grice, in designing
a modern structure, has managed to retain the integrity of this much older form.

The inn has a pronounced simplicity, yet is an effective synthesis of contemporary
elements with the original style.
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Verbal Boundary Description:

130 feet to a point where the property of E. H. Hamilton begins; thence north from
that point along the line between the two properties approximately 105 feet to a
point; and thence east approximately 130 feet along the line between the property
and that of Grady Sumner (this line having been marked by a wire fence since 1930
when the Grice estate was divided) to the point of origin on State Street. The inn
is situated 4 feet from State Street and 13 feet from East Elm Street.



